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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
The following Settlement Agreement is hereby agreed to between West Fraser, Inc.
(“Respondent”) and the Department of Environmental Quality (“DEQ” or “the Department”), under
authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act, La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq. (“the Act™).
I
Respondent is a corporation that owns and/or operates a sawmill located in Joyce, Winn
Parish, Louisiana (“the Facility™).
i
On February 1, 2019, the Department issued to Respondent a Notice of Potential Penalty,
Enforcement Tracking No. AE-PP-18-00536 (Exhibit 1).
On December 27, 2019, the Department issued to Respondent a Consolidated Compliance
Order & Notice of Potential Penalty, Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-01078 (Exhibit 2).
On November 12, 2024, the Department issued to Respondent a Notice of Potential Penalty,

Enforcement Tracking No. AE-PP-24-00312 (Exhibit 3).



The following violations, although not cited in the foregoing enforcement actions, are
included within the scope of this settlement:

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent for
more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers CAP,
Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for not more
than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement
88 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V9 and Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-
00006-V10, LAC33:1I1.1101.B,LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed a daily block average opacity in excess of (10)
percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON (0004. The failure to maintain
the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of Specific
Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V9 and V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C .4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to continuously monitor GRP0004/All
Wood-Fired Boilers for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) according to procedures in 40
CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific Requirement
66 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, Specific Requirement 65 of Title V Air Permit Nos.

3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(c), which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in
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LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 25, 2020, the Respondent submitted the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004/All Wood-Fired Boilers
for oxygen by oxygen analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific
Requirement 65 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, Specific Requirement 64 of Title V Air
Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a), which language has been adopted as a Louisiana
regulation in LAC 33:1I1.5122.A, LAC 33:1I1.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(2).

The Respondent failed to operate and maintain the continuous monitoring system (CMS) in
accordance with the site-specific monitoring plan. Specifically, in the 2019 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report submitted on March 25, 2020, the Respondent reported deviations of
all wood-fired boilers (GRP0004) at steam load #4 failing to operate and maintain the CMS in
accordance with the site-specific monitoring plan. These events are violations of Specific
Requirement 50 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V9, Specific Requirement 49 of Title V Air
Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7505(d)(4), which language has been adopted as a
Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:1i1.501.C 4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A}(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 First
Title V Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20)
percent for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired
Boilers CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20)
percent for not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of

Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC
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33:11L501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of
ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulationin LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific Requirement 64 of Title V
Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted as a
Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity for three (3) events by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously
according to procedures in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a
violation of Specific Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V 10, 40 CFR 63.7525(d),
which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC
33:1I1.501.C 4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V

Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20)
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percent for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired
Boilers CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20)
percent for not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of
Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC
33:11L501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures
in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific
Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V 10, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has
been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:1I1.5122.A, LAC 33:1I1.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by
oxygen analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:I11.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2020 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess
of ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004, Each failure
to maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of

Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
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language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111,501.C.4, La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent
for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers
CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for
not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific
Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C.4,
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R. S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of
ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La.
R.S.30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CONQ004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures
in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (¢)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific
Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V 10, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has
been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S.

30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).
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In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La. R.8. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20)
percent for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired
Botilers CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004, Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20)
percent for not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of
Specific Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10and V11, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC
33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess
of ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure
to maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2),
which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:IiL.5122.A, LAC
33:11.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic

Precipitator for by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures in 40
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CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific Requirement 3
of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has been
adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1)
and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In cotrespondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2021 Title V
Second Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by
oxygen analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). In violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent
for more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers
CAP, Emission Source GRP 0004, Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for
not more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific
Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V10 and V11, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC
33:11L501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of
ten (10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which

language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122 A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
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R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor CON0004/Electrostatic
Precipitator for opacity by continuous opacity monitor (COM) continuously according to procedures
in 40 CFR 63.7525(c)(1) through (c)(7) of Subpart DDDDD. This is a violation of Specific
Requirement 3 of Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7525(d), which language has
been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated June 21, 2023, the Respondent submitted the Revised 2022 Title V
First Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V10, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 28, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2022 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent for
more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers CAP,
Emission Source GRP 0004. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for not
more than one (1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific
Requirement 87 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C 4,
La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 28, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2022 Title V Second

Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed daily block average opacities in excess of ten
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(10) percent for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004. Each failure to
maintain the daily block average opacity less than or equal to ten (10) percent is a violation of
Specific Requirement 1 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which
language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122,A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La.
R.8. 30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).

In correspondence dated March 28, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2022 Title V Second
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The Respondent failed to monitor GRP0004 oxygen by oxygen
analyzer system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 64 of
Title V Air Permit No. 3240-00006-V11, 40 CFR 63.7525(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C .4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(AX(2).

In correspondence dated August 25, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2023 Title V First
Semiannual Monitoring Report. The report disclosed opacities in excess of twenty (20) percent for
more than one six-minute period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the Electrostatic Precipitator
(ESP), CON00Q04. Each failure to maintain opacity below twenty (20) percent for not more than one
(1) six-minute periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement 5 of
Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V12, LAC 33:.111.1101.B, LAC 33:l1.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

The Respondent failed to operate and maintain the CMS in accordance with the site-specific
monitoring plan. In correspondence dated August 25, 2023, the Respondent submitted the 2023 Title
V First Semiannual Monitoring Report stating the failure to monitor oxygen by oxygen analyzer
system continuously (Subpart DDDDD). This is a violation of Specific Requirement 20 of Title V

Permit No. 3240-00006-V12, 40 CFR 63.7505(d)(4), which language has been adopted as a
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Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:111.501.C 4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
R.S. 30:2057(A)(2).
11

Respondent denies it committed any violations or that it is liable for any fines, forfeitures
and/or penalties.

v

Nonetheless, Respondent, without making any admission of liability under state or federal
statute or regulation, agrees to pay, and the Department agrees to accept, a payment in the amount of
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($130,000.00), of which Five
Thousand One Hundred Seventy-Eight and 74/100 Dollars ($5,178.74) represents the Department’s
enforcement costs, in settlement of the claims set forth in this Settlement Agreement. The total
amount of money expended by Respondent on cash payments to the Department as described above,
shall be considered a civil penalty for tax purposes, as required by La. R.S. 30:2050.7(E)(1).

\'

Respondent further agrees that the Department may consider the inspection report(s), permit
record(s), the Notices of Potential Penalty, Consolidated Compliance Order & Notice of Potential
Penalty and this Settlement Agreement for the purpose of determining compliance history in
connection with any future enforcement or permitting action by the Department against Respondent,
and in any such action Respondent shall be estopped from objecting to the above-referenced
documents being considered as proving the violations alleged herein for the sole purpose of
determining Respondent's compliance history.

VI

This Settlement Agreement shall be considered a final order of the Secretary for all purposes,
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including, but not limited to, enforcement under La. R.S. 30:2025(G)(2), and Respondent hereby
waives any right to administrative or judicial review of the terms of this agreement, except such
review as may be required for interpretation of this Settlement Agreement in any action by the
Department to enforce this Settlement Agreement.
VI
This Settlement Agreement is being made in the interest of settling the state's claims and
avoiding for both parties the expense and effort involved in litigation or an adjudicatory hearing. In
agreeing to the compromise and Settlement Agreement, the Department considered the factors for
issuing civil penalties set forth in La. R.S. 30:2025(E) of the Act.
VI
As required by law, the Department has submitted this Settlement Agreement to the
Louisiana Attorney General for approval or rejection. The Attorney General’s concurrence is
appended to this Settlement Agreement.
IX
The Respondent has caused a public notice advertisement to be placed in the official journal
of the parish governing authority in Winn Parish, Louisiana. The advertisement, in form and
wording approved by the Department, announced the availability of this Settlement Agreement for
public view and comment and the opportunity for a public hearing. Respondent has submitted an
original proof-of-publication affidavit and an original public notice to the Department and, as of the
date this Settlement Agreement is executed on behalf of the Department, more than forty-five (45)
days have elapsed since publication of the notice.
X

Payment is to be made within thirty (30) days from notice of the Secretary's signature. If
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payment is not received within that time, this Settlement Agreement is voidable at the option of the
Department. The Respondent shall provide its tax identification number when submitting payment,
Payments are to be made by check, payable to the Department of Environmental Quality, and mailed
or delivered to the attention of Accountant Administrator, Financial Services Division, Department
of Environmental Quality, Post Office Box 4303, Baton Rouge, Louisiana, 70821-4303 or by
Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) to the Department of Environmental Quality, in accordance with
instructions provided to Respondent by the Financial Services Division. Each payment shall be
accompanied by a completed Settlement Payment Form attached hereto.
XI
In consideration of the above, any claims for penalties are hereby compromised and settled in
accordance with the terms of this Settlement Agreement.
XI1
Each undersigned representative of the parties certifies that he or she is fully authorized to
execute this Settlement Agreement on behalf of his or her respective party, and to legally bind such

party to its terms and conditions.
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WEST FRASER, INC.

BY:
(Signature)
(Printed)
TITLE:
THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this day of
,20 ,at :

NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # )

(stamped or printed)

LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Courtney J. Burdette, Secretary

BY:
Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant Secretary
Office of Environmental Compliance

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in duplicate original before me this day of
, 20 , at Baton Rouge, Louisiana.

NOTARY PUBLIC (ID # )

X\@ (stamped or printed)
Approved: w

Jerrie “Jerry” Lang, Assistant Secretary
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1 3Re 21
AR 10
L A4 18,19
480 A
S 14
5/8 16




BT Ovacity > 0%
Jeviation hours Op“gzu: : 0%, Corrective Action
Lo
1.0
10 e .
~10 Added dry shavings
33 '

154, 1.1

1.9, 1.1
1.0, 1.3 1 Manage cooling
10 ' water

e o i

Wet Fuel

- Each failure fo. maintain opacity below 20% for six-minute. periods in
©-any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of SR 94 of Titlé V Pemit
- No.:3240:00006-V5, SR 93 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V6,
* LAC 33111018, LAC 33:ILS0L.C4, La. RS. 30:2057(AX1) and
-30:2057(A)(2).: The monitoring repott further explained that the loss of Boiler
‘No. 1 required Boiler No. 410 operite at maximum capacity and that the
faeilityhad 1o purchase outside waste wood fuel which contained higher
~moisture than the facility typically consumed internally. In correspondence
dated June 29, 2018, the | jent listed steps to be taken going forward to
e future opacity exceedances,

spondence dated July 12, 2018, the Respondent submitted the
2017 Anntal Criteria Pollufant Emission Inventory and Toxic

At Invéntory.  The fhilure to submit the criteria pollutant
ty by the exterided due date of May 18, 2018 is a violation
1.4, LAC 33:111,501.C4 and La. R.S. 30:2057(AX2).
The failure to submit the toxic emissions inventory data by the extended
~due- date is 'a violation of LAC 33:I115107.A, LAC 33:111.501.C.4 and
LasRiS. 30:2057(AX2)..

o Pursuantta __L_a.;‘-R-._Sg;%"_o‘fo_:_ZOSO.B(B), you are heféby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessmient is being considered for the violations described herein. Written comments may-be filed

- regarding the violations and the contemplated penalty. 1f you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice. -

Prior to thy issuance of ‘any additional appropriate enforcement action, you may request a
meeting with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violations. If you
would like to have such a meeting, please contact Mark E. Brown within ten (10) days of receipt of this
NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY. '
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-18-00536
Page 5

The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the -
Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance in order to determine whether a penalty will be
assessed and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross
revenue statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited
violations to the above named contact person within ten (10} days of receipt of this NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you
utilized to arrive at the sum. If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully
justify this statement. If the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross
revenues statement within ten (10) days, it wiil be viewed by the Department as an admission that the
Respondent has the ability to pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.

For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties and
the right to seek compliance with its rules and regulations in any manner allowed by law, and nothing
herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties and compliance.

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpart].Chapter 7. To expedite
ciosure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY, the Respondent may offer a setilement amount
to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violations described herein. The Respondent may offer a
settlement amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations.
The decision to proceed with a settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement offer
amount may be entered on the attached “NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO
SETTLE” form. The Respondent must include a justification of the offer. DO NOT submit payment of
the offer amount with the form. The Department will review the settlement offer and notify the
Respondent as to whether the offer is or is not accepted.

To reduce document handling, please refer to the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency
Interest Number on the front of this document on all correspondence in response to this action.

Lourdes [turralde
Assistant Secretary _
Office of Environmental Compliance

LI/MEB/meb
Alt ID No. 3240-00006

c: West Fraser, Inc.
P O Drawer 1
Joyce, LA 71440



‘ ComiaciName | MarkE Grown
i cantact Phone so. | (225) 2193782

. Fadtitvﬂam Jovce Sawmil
Imyﬁcaltocatlon 6841 Louisiana Highway 34

| City, State, Zip: Joyce, LA 71440

erest fm entering into settlement negntiatlons with the Department with the understanding that the
-tefassess Ch-ﬂ penaities based on LAC 33 A Subparti Chapter7,

s in ehbeﬂna inta settfement negotiations with the Department and would fike to set up a meeting to
tmcedms. -

: eres!ed “n entering !mo settlemtnt negotiatims with the Department and offers to pay
g L whfch shai inc!ude LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance,
-:Moneta mmpnneﬁu - $ 2
* Beneficial | nvironmantal Project (BEPjr.omponent (optional)- S
e DO NOT SUBMIT PAYMENT OF 1‘H_£ OFFER WH‘H THIS FORM- the Department will review the se!(!e‘ment offer and notify
Lo thc R:;pondent asto whether the fferts ora‘s not accepted

nnsnoted in NOT!CE OF POTENI’!A!. PEHAI.T_\’ AE—PP~18-00536 and has attached a

_ _ not owe oumandfng [ees orpenames to the Department for this facility
nor aperate. lfarther cem,fy that l am either the Respondent or an authormd representative of the

Rmndemﬁmure B R Réspondent’s Printed Name Respondent’s Title

Respdn#mt's Piwﬂul Mdress ~ Hespondent’s Phona # Date
, . .  MAIL COMPIEI‘ED DOCUMENT TO TI-EE AADDRESS BELOW:
VLouislana Depampent of Envlmnmental Quality
“Office of Envirg mgn;al(:omplianoa
“Enforcement Dhﬁslon c
| PO.Boxdzaz
' Mm:Mark E; Erown
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Joun BeL EowarDs %\ Cruck Carr BrowN, Pu.D,

GOVERNOR Reerst 15 SEURETARY
State of Louigiana

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

December 27, 2019
EXHIBIT

2

tabbies’

CERTIFIED MAIL (7018 2290 0000 5826 1593)
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

WEST FRASER, INC.

¢/o C T Corporation System
Agent for Service of Process
5615 Corporate Blvd., Ste. 400B
Baton Rouge, LA 70808

RE: CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER
& NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO. AE-CN-19-01078
AGENCY INTEREST NO. 2866

Dear Sir/Madam:

Pursuant to the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act (La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq.), the attached
CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY is hereby
served on WEST FRASER, INC, (RESPONDENT) for the violation(s) described therein,

Compliance is expected within the maximum time period established by each part of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER. The violation(s) cited in the CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE
ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY could result in the issuance of a civil penalty or
other appropriate legal actions.

Any questions concerning this action should be directed to Mark E. Brown at (225) 219-3782 or
via email at mark.brown@la.gov.

Sincerely,

v
Celen ﬂ&&
Administrator
Enforcement Division
CJIC/MEB/meb
Alt 1D No. 3240-00006
Attachment

Past Office Box 4312 # Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4312 » Phone 225-219-3715 » Fax 225-219-3708

www.dea.loulsiana.gov
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¢ West Fraser, Inc,
Mr. Billy Bell, Manager
P. O. Drawer 1
Joyee, LA 71440
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STATE OF LOUISIANA

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE

IN THE MATTER OF

WEST FRASER, INC.
WINN PARISH
ALT ID NO, 3240-00006

PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE LOUISIANA

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT,
La. R.S. 30:2001, ET SEQ.

* * ¥ ¥ ¥ % ¥ ¥ * *

CONSOLIDATED

ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO.

AE-CN-19-01078

2866

AGENCY INTEREST NO.

COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

The following CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY is issued to WEST FRASER, INC. (RESPONDENT) by the Louisiana Department of
Environmental Quality (the Department), under the authority granted by the Louisiana Environmental
Quality Act (the Act), La. R.S. 30:2001, et seq., and particularly by La. R.S. 30:2025(C), 30:2050.2 and

30:2050.3(B).

FINDINGS OF FACT

The Respondent owns and/or operates the JOYCE SAWMILL (the facility), a sawmill, located
at 6481 Louisiana Highway 34 in Joyce, Winn Parish, Louisiana. The facility operates or has operated
under the authority of the following Title V Air Permits shown in Table A:

L.

| TABLE A
Title V Permit No, Permit Issue Date Permit Expiration Date
3240-00006-V4 June 25, 2015 June 25, 2020
-3240-00006-V5 June 2, 2016 June 235, 2020
__3240-00006-Vé6 May 26, 2017 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-v7 May 4, 2018 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-vV38 August 8, 2018 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V9 October 4, 2018 June 25, 2020
3240-00006-V10 QOctober 2, 2019 June 25, 2020
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1L
On or about December 3, 2019, the Department conducted a file review to determine the
Respondent’s degree of compliance with the Act, the Air Quality Regulations, and all applicable
permits. While the Department’s investigation is not yet complete, the following violations wete noted
during the course of the file review:

A. In corresponidence dated August 16, 2019, the Respondent submitted revised 2018
Semiannual Monitoring Reports and the 2019 1* Semiannual Monitoring Report.
The reports disclosed opacities in excess of 20% for more than one six-minute
period in any 60 consecutive minutes for the All Wood-Fired Boilers CAP,
Emission Source GRP 0004, for the periods shown in Table B:

Table B
Deviation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)

1/3/18 1/3/18 0.6
1/4/18 1/4/18 04
1/5/18 /518 1.7
1/6/18 1/6/18 0.8
1/7/18 N 1/7/18 0.3
1/9/18 1/9/18 _ 0.9
1710118 1/10/18 0.8
1711718 118 1.0
1/12/18 1/12/18 04
115418 1/15/18 03
11218 2/12/18 0.2
213/18 2/13/18 0.2
2/14/18 2/14/18 0.2
2/15/18 2/15/18 0.2
2/16/18 _ 2/16/18 0.4
2/19/18 220/18 0.2

2/20/18 212018 02
2121118 2/21/18 0.6
221/18 2/22/18 0.3
2/22/18 2/22/18 3.2
2123/18 2/23/18 0.8
2/26/18 2026/18 3.7
2/27/18 227/18 0.8
2/28/18 2/28/18 3.4
3/2/18 3/2/18 1.5
3/3/18 3/3/18 1.4
3/5/18 3/5/18 L5
3/5/18 3/6/18 0.8
3/6/18 3/6/18 0.8
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Deviation Began | Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)
3718 3/7/18 1.0
38118 3/8/18 1.6

3/9/18 3/9/18 0.7
3/10/18 3/10/18 02
3/11/18 3/11/18 0.4
3/12/18 31218 _ 2.1
¥13/18 3/13/18 04
3/15/18 3/15/18 0.4
317118 3/17/18 1.6
312018 3/20/18 0.2
372318 3/23/18 0.2
32718 32718 0.4
328118 3/28/18 1.2
__3ong 3/29/18 3.4
330718 3/30/18 0.2
41118 4/1/18 0.4
473718 ' 4/3/18 0.2
_4/4/18 4/4/18 0.6
4/6/18 4/6/18 1.9
4/7/18 41718 2.7
4/9/18 __4nm9/18 0.4
4/10/18 ____4hons 0.5
4/13/18 4/13/18 02
4/14/18 4/14/18 0.4
4/16/18 4116118 . 0.2
41718 4/17118 1.8
_4/19/18 4/19/18 , 1.8
4/20/18 4/20/18 B 2.0
421/18 421718 0.6
A22/18 4218 2.1
4/26/18 4/26/18 _ 0.4
427118 4/27/18 B 0.2
5/2/18 5/2/18 0.3
5318 5/3/18 0.3
5/4/18 5/4/18 0.2
5/10/18 5/10/18 0.2
5/12/18 5/12/18 0.2
_S/14/18 5/14/18 0.5
5/16/18 5/16/18 0.4
5/17/18 5/17/18 0.2
5/18/18 5/18/18 0.5
5120718 5/20/18 0.2
5/21/18 5121/18 0.5
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Deviation Began | Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)

. 5126/18 5/26/18 04
SR8 1. 52718 0.2
53118 5/31/18 0.2
6318 6/4/18 0.5
6/4/18 | 6/4/18 2.7
6/6/18 __6/6/18 0.3
6/7/18 _ 6/7/18 0.6
6/9/18 6/9/18 0.2
6/13/18 6/13/18 02
6/14/18 6/14/18 | 0.3
6/16/18 6/16/18 06
6/17/18 , 6/17/18 0.3
6/20/18 6/20/18 02
621/18 6/21/18 0.3
6/22/18 6/22/18 0.8
__6R4/18 6/24/18 ' 1.6
6/27/18 6/27/18 0.2
6/28/18 6/28/18 | 1.0
6/30/18 _ 6/30/18 03
7118 7118 0.6
7318 | 713118 0.7
1318 L 7mans 0.5
74/18 1 714/18 0.2
7/6/18 1 ens 1.5
7/9/18 | IR (1/d - 1.0
7/10/18 7/10/18 1.8
nyis 711/18 2.7
7/12/18 712/18 0.4
/1318 | 7/13/18 0.6
714118 14/18 0.3
1518 | 7/15/18 1.8
716/18 7/16/18 04
718 N8 . 0.7
7/18/18 7/18/18 0.5
71918 71918 N 1.3
721/18 7121/18 0.3
721/18 122/18 03
7122118 772218 0.2
7/23/18 123/18 3.9
7121118 ' 2718 0.6
7128/18 7128118 0.5
7/29/18 7/29/18 0.3
730/18 7/30/18 0.3
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)
13118 73118 2.1
_8/1/18 8/1/18 1.0
8/2/18 82118 1.1
8/3/18 8/3/18 0.3
8/4/18 __8ane 0.2
8/6/18 8/6/18 1.1
87118 8/7/18 1.0
8/8/18 __ 8818 0.8
8/11/18 8/11/18 0.2
8/12/18 8/12/18 4.5
8/12/18 _ 8/13/18 1.3
B8/14/18 8/14/18 0.7
8/15/18 8/15/18 0.5
8/16/18 8/16/18 0.2
8/18/18 8/18/18 0.3
8/19/18 8/19/18 1.1
8/20/18 820118 | 13
8/21/18 8/21/18 0.2
872218 8/22/18 0.2
B/23/18 8/23/18 04
_824/18 8/24/18 _ 0.2
__8026/18 8/26/18 3 10
9/2/18 9/2/18 0.2
9/3/18 9/3/18 3.1
9/3/18 9/4/18 6.9
9/418 9/4/18 10
9/5/18 9/5/18 12
9/6/18 , 9/6/18 02
9/7/18 9/1/18 0.6
9/11/18 9/11/18 1.9
9/11/18 9/12/18 _ 0.2
9/12/18 ___9nmans 2.7
9/13/18 9/13/18 3.4
9/16/18 9/16/18 1.5
9/17/18 9/17/18 _ 0.9
9/18/18 9/18/18 24
9/19/18 9/19/18 1.5
9/20/18 9/20/18 4.0
921/18 9/21/18 5.4
9/22/18 9/22/18 3.1
9/23/18 9/23/18 5.3
9/24/18 9/24/18 2.0
9/25/18 9/25/18 4.6
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_ Deviation Beg'nn Deviation Ended Deviation duration (hours)
9/25/18 9/26/18 , 0.5
0/26/18 - 9726/18 _ 3.2
9/26/18 9/27/18 3.6
912718 92718 2.2
9/28/18 0/28/18 3.3
9/29/18 9/29/18 37
9/30/18 9/30/18 3.0
9/30/18 10/1/18 1.4
10/1/18 10/1/18 5.8
10/1/18 10/2/18 . 1.5
10/2/18 10/2/18 4.7
10/3/18 10/3/18 24
10/4/18 , 10/4/18 11.1
10/5/18 10/5/18 6.4
10/6/18 1 10/6/18 T 37
10/6/18 ' 10/7/18 0.3
10/7/18 f 10/7/18 0.9
10/8/18 ' 10/8/18 4.6
10/9/18 10/9/18 7 10.7
10/9/18 10/10/18 1.3
10/10/18 10/10/18 6.4
10/10/18 , 10/11/18 06
10/11/18 10/11/18 3.1
10/12/18 10/12/18 0.7
10/13/18 10/13/18 28
10/14/18 10/14/18 3.4
10/15/18 10/15/18 5.7
10/16/18 10/16/18 7.1
10/16/18 10/17/18 1.0
10/17/18 10/17/18 3.9
10/18/18 10/18/18 4,7
10/19/18 10/19/18 2.7
10/20/18 10/20/18 0.7
10/20/18 10/21/18 ' 5.6
10/21/18 10/21/18 3.2
10/21/18 10/22/18 5.0
10/22/18 10/22/18 7.6
10/22/18 10/23/18 1.5
10/23/18 10/23/18 4.0
10/24/18 10/24/18 1.7
10/24/18 10/25/18 __ 0.3
10/25/18 10/25/18 4.2
10/25/18 10/26/18 2.5
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)
10/26/18 ~10R26/18 3.0
10/26/18 10218 1.4
1027118 110”8 _ 4,1
102818 10/28/18 2.5
102918 10/29/18 8.5
10729718 10/30/18 3.0
10/30/18 10/30/18 5.4
103018~ 10/31/18 4.7
103118 1031718 16.9

103118 11/1/18 5.8
111718 T 118 16
11/1/18 11/2/18 5.0
112/18 11/2/18 119
CHNRAR 11/3/18 4.5
11/3/18 11/3/18 13.1
11/4/18 11/4/18 10.7
_11/4/18 11518 | 3.0
11/5/18 | 11/5/18 162
11/5/18 11/6/18 3.0
11/6/18 11/6/18 _ 10.0
11/6/18 11/718 40
11/7/18 117718 7.9
117718 11/8/18 16.0
11/8/18 ~11/8/18 12.5
11/9/18 11/9/18 11.3
11/9/18 1/10/18 5.0
11/10/18 11/10018 8.9
11/10/18 H/A1/18 2.0
11/11/18 TINg 109
11711718 11/12/18 4.0
11/12/18 11/12/18 4.0
11/12/18 11/13/18 1.0
11/13/18 11/13/18 11.9
11/13/18 11/14/18 12.2
11/14/18 11/14/18 10.0
11/14/18 11/15/18 6.0
11/15/18 11/15/18 4.0
11/15/18 11/16/18 16.0
11/16/18 11/16/18 13.3
11/16/18 11/17/18 3.0
1117118 11/17/18 15.6
11/18/18 11/18/18 11.9
11718718 T 11/19/18 3.0
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended. | Deviation duration (hours)
11/19/18 11/19/18 119
11/19/18 11/20/18 3.0
11/20/18 11/20/18 12.8
11/20/18 11/21/18 11.6
11/21/18 11/21/18 11.6
11/21/18 11/22/18 1.6
1122/18 11/22/18 12.4
12/9/18 12/9/18 0.4
12/10/18 12/10/18 1.4
12/1118 ' 12/11/18 3.0
12/12/18 ' 12/12/18 0.2
12/13/18 12/13/18 0.2
12/14/18 12/14/18 0.2
12/17/18. 12/17/18 o 2.2
12/18/18 12/18/18 1.2
12/19/18 12/19/18 1.1
12/20/18 12/20/18 0.3
12/21/18 12/21/18 0.6
12/25/18 12/25/18 2.3
12/26/18 12126/18 - 3.6
12/27/18 ' 12/27/18 1.9
12/28/18 12/28/18 0.9
1/3/19 1/3/19 0.9
1/7/19 ' 1/7/19 3.1
1/9/19 1/9/19 1.1
1/12/19 1/12/19 0.2
1/1319 1/13/19 1.4
1/23/19 1/23/19 5.1
1/24/19 1/24/19 0.3
1/25/19 1/25/19 ' 0.4
1/28/19 1/28/19 0.2
1/29/19 1/29/19 0.2
1/30/19 1/30/19 0.3
2/4/19 2/4/19 0.6
2/18/19 2/18/19 0.2
2/20/19 2/21/19 0.6
2121119 2/21/19 0.5
2/22/19 2/22/19 0.6
2/26/19 2/26/19 0.3
3/5/19 3/5/19 0.3
3/9/19 3/9/19 0.2
3/20/19 3/20/19 0.2
3/21/19 3/21/19 0.3
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Deviation Began Deviation Ended | Deviation duration (hours)
32419 324/19 0.5
3/28/19 3/28/19 0.3
3725119 3/29/19 0.2
3/31/19 33119 0.5
4/8/19 4/8/19 1.7
4/13/19 4/13/19 0.2
4/15/19 4/15/19 0.2
4/17/19 4/17/19 1.0
4/19/19 4/19/19 0.6
4/22/19 4/22/19 0.5
S/519 5/5/19 1.2
SN0M9 5/10/19 2.6
5/10/19 5ning 1.3
511219 SN2/19 0.8

_S/18/19 5/18/19 1.6
_5/28/19 5128/19 0.2
6/2/19 6/2/19 0.3
6/5/19 6/5/19 0.4

Each failure to maintain opacity below 20% for not more than one (1) six-minute
periods in any 60 consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement (SR)
93 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V6, SR 89 of Title V' Permit
No. 3240-00006-V7, SR 88 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V8, SR 88 of Title
V Permit No, 3240-00006-V9, LAC 33:111.1101.B, LAC 33:111.501.C4, La. R.S.
30:2057(AX1) and 30:2057(A)(2).

. In correspondence dated August 16, 2019, the Respondent submitted revised 2018
Semiannual Monitoring Reports and the 2019 1* Semiannual Monitoring Report.
The reports disclosed daily block opacities averages in excess of 10% for the
Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), Emission Source CON 0004, for the periods shown

in Table C:
. Table C
Deviation Began De_viqtion Ended Deviation duration (hours)
202118 2/23/18 24
226/18 3/1/18 72
37218 3/6/18 66
3INg 3/8/18 18
3/12/18 3/13/18 24
3/17/18 3/18/18 24
3/29/18 3/30/18 24
4/6/18 4/8/18 48
4/19/18 4/21/18 48
4/22/18 4/23/18 24
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Deviation Ended

Deviation Began Deviation duration (hours)
52118 5/22/18 M
6/4/18 6/5/18 24
6/24/18 6/25/18 24
7118 7/2/18 13
710/18 7/16/18 144
717/18 7/20/18 72
721/18 7124/18 72
131718 8/9/18 212
8/19/18 8/20/18 24
9718 9/8/18 24
9/16/18 11724/18 1,510
12/27/18 12/28/18 24
1/23/19 1/24/19 24
4117119 4/18/19 12.0

Each failure to maintaiti the daily block average opacity less than or equal to 10% is
a violation of Specific Requirement (SR) 1 of Title V Permit Nos.
3240-00006-V6, 3240-00006-V7, 3240-00006-V8, 3240-00006-V9, 40 CFR
63.7500(a)(2), which language has been adopted as a Louisiana regulation in
LAC 33:0L5122.A, LAC 33:1IL501.C.4, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and
30:2057(AX2).

11,
In correspondence dated April 15, and October 14, 2019, the Respondent submitted to the
Department a Compliance Plan to address the opacity violations at the facility. In correspondence dated
December 13, 2019, the Respondent stated Boiler #1 will not startup. Based on this information, the

milestones contained in the Compliance Plan directly related to Boiler #1 are no longer necessary,

COMPLIANCE ORDER
Based on the foregoing, the Respondent is hereby ordered:
L
To take, immediately upon receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER, any and ali steps necessary
to meet and maintain compliance with the Air Quality Regulations and applicable permits. .
IL.
The Department has reviewed the Compliance Plan submitted by the Respondent in
correspondence dated April 15 and October 14, 2019, and hereby orders the Respondent to implement the

following milestones to achieve compliance:

10
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TABLE D
| MILESTONE T DUE DATE

Submit & written report to the Department on the ecvaluation and 1/31/2020
recommenxdations related to improvements of the boilers and kilns _
Implement, install and/or upgrade equipment and/or control systems based on 6/30/2021
recommendations

The Respondent shall notify the Department in writing of any changes to the approved compliance
schedule within seven (7) days of notice/discovery of failure to meet the due dates.
I

To submit to the Enforcement Division quarterly progress reports untii the completion of the
milestones listed in Paragraph II of the Order Portion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER. The quarterly
progress reports shall include the following information: 1) findings of additional work to be completed;
2) results of the work completed to date, and, 3) any additional modifications that have yet to be identified.
Quarterly progress reports shall be submitted to the Department on the last day of the month preceding
each quarter.

Iv.

To submit to the Enforcement Division, within thity (30) days after receipt of this
COMPLIANCE ORDER, a written report that includes a detailed description of the circumstances
surrounding the cited violations and actions taken or to be taken to achieve compliance with the Order
Portion of this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This report and all other reports or information required to be
submitted to the Enforcement Division by this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall be submitted to;

Office of Environmental Compliance

Post Office Box 4312

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4312

Aftn: Mark E. Brown

Re: Enforcement Tracking No, AE-CN-19-01078
Agency Interest No. 2866

THE RESPONDENT SHALL FURTHER BE ON NOTICE THAT:
L
The Respondent has-a right to an adjudicatory hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of
law arising from this COMPLIANCE ORDER. This right may be exetcised by filing a written request
with the Secretary no later than thirty (30) days after receipt of this COMPLIANCE ORDER,

1



LDEQ-EDMS Document 11995554, Page 14 of 19

il
The request for an adjudicatory hearing shall specify the provisions of the COMPLIANCE
ORDER on which the hearing is requested and shall briefly describe the basis for the request.
This request should reference the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency Interest Number, which are
located in the upper right-hand corner of the first page of this document and should be directed to the
following:

Department of Environmental Quality

Office of the Secretary

Past Office Box 4302

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70821-4302

Attn: Hearings Clerk, Legal Division

Re: Enforcement Tracking No, AE-CN-19-01078
Agency Interest No. 2866

I

Upon the Respondent's timely filing a request for a hearing, a hearing on the disputed issue of
material fact or of law regarding this COMPLIANCE ORDER may be scheduled by the Secretary of the
Department. The hearing shall be governed by the Act, the Administrative Procedure Act (La. R.S.
49:950, et seq.), and the Division of Administrative Law (DAL) Pracedural Rules. The Department may
amend or supplement this COMPLIANCE ORDER prior to the hearing, after providing sufficient notice
and an opportunity for the preparation of a defense for the hearing.

1v.

This COMPLIANCE ORDER shall become a final enforcement action unless the request for
hearing is timely filed, Failure to timely request a hearing constitutes a waiver of the Respondent's right
to a hearing on a disputed issue of material fact or of law under Section 2050.4 of the Act for the
violation(s) described herein.

V.

The Respondent's failure to request a hearing or to file an appeal or the Respondent's withdrawal
of a request for hearing on this COMPLIANCE ORDER shall not preclude the Respondent from
contesting the findings of facts in any subsequent penalty action addressing the same violation(s), although
the Respondent is estopped from objecting to this COMPLIANCE ORDER becoming a permanent part

of its compliance history.

12
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VL
Civil penalties of not more than twenty-seven thousand five hundred dollars ($27,500) for each
day of violation for the violation(s) described herein may be assessed. For violations which occurred on
August 15, 2004, or after, civil penalties of not more than thirty-two thousand five hundred dollars
($32,500) may be assessed for each day of violation. The Respondent's failure or refusal to comply with
this COMPLIANCE ORDER and the provisions herein will subject the Respondent to possible
enforcement procedures under La. R.S. 302025, which could result in the assessment of & civil penalty in
an amount of not more than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) for each day of continued violation or
noncompliance,
VIL
For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the right to seek civil penalties in any
manner allowed by law, and nothing herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties.

NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
I,

Pursuant to La. R.S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessment is being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written comments may be filed
regarding the violation(s) and the conitemplated penalty. [f you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice.

1L

Prior to the issuance of additional appropriate enforcement action(s), you may request a meeting
with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). If you would
like to have such a meeting, blease contact Mark E. Brown at (225) 219-3782 within ten (10) days of
receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY.

HL
The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the
~ Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance to determine whether a penalty will be assessed
and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross revenue
statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited violation(s) to
the above named contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL
PENALTY. Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you utilized to arrive at the

13
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sum, If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully justify that statement. If
the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross revenues statement within
ten (10) days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the Respondent has the ability to
pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025.

v,

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpartl.Chapter7. To expedite
closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY portion, the Respondent may offer a settlement
amount to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may
offer a settlement amount, but the Departmient is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations.
The decision to proceed with a settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement
offer amount may be entered on the attached “CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER AND
NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO CLOSE” form.

The Respondent must include a justification of the offer. DO NOT submit payment of the offer amount
with the form. The Department will review the settlement offer and notify the Respondent as to whether

the offer is or is not accepted.
V.
This CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY

is effective upon receipt. E

Baton Rouge, Louisiana, this é ’Zf day of I)l C_Q,b\r&g)'/‘ , 2019,

Lourdes Iturralde
Assistant Secretary
Office of Environmental Compliance

14
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Copies of a request for a hearing and/or related correspondence should be sent to:

Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

P.O. Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 3240-00024

Attention; Mark E. Brown

15
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LOUISIANA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRDNMENTAL COMPLIANCE

ENFORCEMENT DIVISION CONSOLIDATED COMPLIANCE ORDER & win ¥
POST OFFICE BOX 4312 NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY DEQ
BATON ROUGE, LOUISIANA 70821-4312 REQUEST TO CLOSE LOUISIANA
Enforcement Tracking No. AE-CN-19-01078 Contact Name _MarkE. Brown
| Agency Interest (A1) No. 2866 Contact Phone No. (225) 219-3782
Alternate 10 No, 3240-00006
Respondent: - | West Fraser, inc. Facllity Name: Joyee Sawmill _
¢/o € T Corporation System , ‘ _
ﬁeﬂ T for Service of Process Physlcal Lacation; 6481 Louislana Highway 34
5615 Corporate Bivd,, Ste. 4008 | City, State, Zip: Joyce, LA
Ba‘ton'Rmmg,_ LA 70816 Parish: winn
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE Date Completed Copy Attached?

A written report was submitted In accordance with Paragraph (il of the "Order” portion of the
COMPLIANCE ORDER,

All necessary documents will be submitted to the Department in accordance with Paragraph
iV of the "Qrder” portion of the COMPLIANCE ORDER.

All items In the “Findings of Fact” portion of the COMPLIANCE ORDER were addressed and
the facility Is being operated to meet and maintain the requirements of the “Order” portion

of the COMPLIANCE DRDER. Final compliance was achieved as of:

SETTLEMENT OFFER (OPTIONAL)

(check the applicoble option)

The Respondent is not Interested in entering Into settiement negotiations with the Department with the understanding that the
Department has the right to assess ¢lvi penalties based on LAC 33:\.5ubpartl.Chapter?.

In order to resolve any claim for dvil penalties for the violations In COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
AE-CN-19-01078, the Respondent Is interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and would like to
sat up 8 meeting to discuss settiement procedures.

in order to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the viokations In COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
AE-CN-19-01078, the Respondent Is interested in entering into settiement negotlations with the Department and offers to pay

$ which shall include LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance,
» Monetary component = s.
+» Benelicial Environmental Project (BEP)component (optional)= S

« DO NOT SUBMIT PAYMENT OF THE OFFER WITH THIS FORM- the Department will review the settlement offer and notify the
Respondent as ta whether the offer Is or Is not accepled.

The Respondent has reviewed the violations noted in COMPLIANCE ORDER & NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY AE-
CN-19-01078, and has attached a justificatlon of its offer and a description of any BEPs if included in settlement offer.

16
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CERTIFICATION STATEMENT

i certify, under provisions in Louisiana and United States law that provide criminal penaities for false statements, that based on information
ond belief formed ofter reosonable inquiry, the stotements and information attached and the compliance statement above, ore true,
occurate, and complete, | olso certify that I do not owe outstanding fees or penalties to the Department for this facility or any other facility
{ own or operate. | further certify thot | am either the Respondent or an outhorized representative of the Respondent.

Respondent’s Signature " Respondent’s Printed Name Respondent's Title

Respondent’s Physical Address Respondent's Phone # Date
MAIL COMPLETED DOCUMENT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW:

Louisiana Department of Environmentat Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

7.0. Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Attn: Mark E. Brown

17
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AURELIA S. GIACOMETTO

GOVERNOKR ' SECRETARY
State of
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE
NOV 1 2 2014
| EXHIBIT
CERTIFIED MAIL (9589 0710 5270 2139 4598 00) ! 3
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
WEST FRASER, INC,
¢/o C T .Corporation System
Agent for Service of Process
3867 Plaza Tower Dr.
Baton Rouge, LA 70816

RE: NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
ENFORCEMENT TRACKING NO. AE-PP-24-00312
AGENCY INTEREST NO, 2866

Dear Sir/Madam:

_ Onor about May 1, 2024 and October 9, 2024, the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
{the Department) conducted an inspection and subsequent file review of FOYCE SAWMILL, a lumber
manufacturing facility, owned and/or operated by WEST FRASER, INC. (RESPONDENT), to
determine the degree of compliance with the Louisiana Environmental Quality Act (the Act) and the A:r
Quality Regulations. The facility is located at 6481 Louisiana Highway 34 in Joyce, Winn Parish,
Louisiana, The facility operates or has operated under the authority of the following Title V Air Permits
and Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) permit shown in Table A:

__3240-00006-V12 March 6, 2023 August 31,2026
3240-00006-V13 Suly 12, 2024 August 31, 2026
PSD-LA-701({M-3) March 6, 2023 N/A

While the investigation by the Department is not yet complete, the following violations were noted
during the course of the inspection and file review:

A. The Respondent exceeded twenty percent opacity for more than one (1) six-
minute period in any sixty (60) consecutive minutes, Specifically, at the time of
the inspection, the Department’s inspector reviewed the six-minute opacity

Post Office Box 4312 « Baton Rougz, Lovisiana 708214312 « Phone 225-219-3710 » Fax 225-219-3330
' www.deq.louisiana.gov
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-24-00312

Page 2

tecords and alarms records for February through April 2024, shown betow in

_Table B,

| Hoppmz,s wnd 4 stopped

L -41’1&2624 | 7‘!3 _ . up. Blew them all down, got Wéé’&w
2| 12:00-1:00 AM 51,084 41 Fuel foeder not feeding | them feeding again, Caused by | "} o 0 a0
" (0.3 hours) prpy a fuel mixture bﬂ?t is heavy in September 2024 outage.
a. 55,800
5. 51.366
R g Bt | P
7| 242324 AM 49.62 4/ Fuel feeder not feeding | them feeding again. Caused by hoppers durirg
] (0733 bowy) Py a fuel mixturs Qatis heavy it | September 2024 outage.
9, 50.018
10, 43937 | o
all Qe 210 ::,”},’ﬁ,'igm‘:ﬁ dovmrgt lnspecting wod repaling
12. | 7:24-8:18AM 63.331 4/ Fuel fecder not feeding | them feeding again. Caused by | b G000
~—{ (©0317bour) prpe | a fuel mix‘“f;"k“ isheavyin | oo ember 2024 cutage.
14| oo 60,362 i“"a"li?;?hfm“;‘ﬁ ;nm Inspecting and repairing
—] 12:00.12:18 AM =] 4/Fuel feedernol feeding | them féeding again, Cosed by |}t iy
15.] (0317 houts) 44.729 a fuel mixture bartt:t is heavy in September 2024 outage.
16. 27917
17 48.030
i8. 56.034
19, 55.025
20. 4/20/2024 51414 iom%’;,na:ﬁ ;:m:t lnspemc:i]nrge:;l;iﬁmﬁng
| ooy [ | R | Sngn e |
7 bark. September 20624 outage.
22. 45444
23, 46.171
24, 49.268
1 2s. =Q:sl.s_e_m_
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-24-00312
Page3

211 % OO-S‘ISAM 533 4/ Fuel feeder not feeding: eeding again. Ciused by b Wﬁedﬂdm’.-.
27| 0317 hours _33._5._11_12 4 fuel mixture hafil(at is heavy in September 2024 outage.
1. o ' Hoppers 2, 3, and 4 stopped | . .
125. mozzm - 53, 5 13 _ up. Blew them all down, got impﬁ'ec:;ng e nndr r:;grhg
I 4:125:12 AM - wosd 4 | Fuel feeder not feeding | them feeding again. Caused by hoppers during
' (0.317 bours) a fue] mixture that is heavy in i .
?0. m_so S16 bark. September 2024 outage,
3. 19,654
33, 57906
34. 26.859
35, 42;3?6 o
3. Moo Hoppers 2, 3, and 4 stopped
, , 3, stop .
37,1 42004 40341 up. Blew them all dow, got "”P“ﬁw‘f‘f &“ﬁ""g
" 7:12-8:54 AM ' oy ' 4 Fuel feeder not feeding | them feeding again. Caused by } during
38, (1.8 hours) 36.734 8 fuel mixture that is heavy in
—L bt bark. September 2024 outage.
[ 2 529
40, 21627
41 42,853
a. 43,788
a3, 30,728
44, 28.080
45, 412072024 71.054 . Normal corrective
12:12-12:24 M ‘ |/ Cletchaln ‘“‘““‘::““‘ Changes belts on cleat chain. | maintenance, chaaging
46,1 (0317 bours) 20.545 n/repa belts,
P Short personnel on 4/22/2024
a1 apnon ss0s2 | 15/ Kiln tesues “‘-i"";‘"’"’ and was unable to maintain |  Kiln paused dus to
—4 12:00-12:12 PM mp:;"‘“ ""“‘“}- " stutdo w:*of full production at kilns so one being short 0
43, | (0217 hours) 32924 Kiln, load change, efc.) was pau;eltiie ;e;:gggﬁy until personnel.
. . _ Short personnel on 4/22/2024
9.1 an212024 66.223 15 gmﬁgﬂm d‘j::"“ and was unable to maintain |  Kiln paused due to
1:48-2:00 PM dom shutdown of | full roduction at kilns so one being short 02
50. 1 (0217 howrs) 51.915 ! Wiumlu, Joad change, efc.) wag pau::l‘iic, ?mly until personnel.
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‘West Fraser, Inc,
AE-PP-24-00312
Page 4

. ;éi; —
52, 61.065
53  35.549 Process change, boiler
o § / Fuel issue: improperly Bailer pile had too much operators responsible

i [P o N L mixed, bigh moisture | sawdust, Had to adjust boiler | for tracking fel
58 '(0 5 I;om) 52,085 content, lack of adequate setiings due to fluctuations in mixture, moisture

. e R fuet substitute fuel mixture. content, and ad ust
56, 45.108 accordingly.
57. 36362
58. 28090
o ',2021 . 15 / Kiln issues (kilns down Lost power to kilns and
9. 122‘;2_91% AM 47133 for maintenance and/or commuaication to kilns from NA
60.| (0733hou) | asgg | "orein random shudownof | computer sereen caused by bad |

d - 5278 kiln, load change, ets.) weather eyent

Esich failure to control the emission of smoke generated by the buming of fuel
or combustion of waste material in & combustion unit 50 that the shade or
appearance of the emission is not darker than twenty (20) percent average
opacity for not more than one (1) six-minute periog#”in any sixty (60)
consecuh&. minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement 5 of Title V Permit
No. 3240-00006-V12, LAC 33:IL1101.B, LAC 331L501.C4, La. R.S.
30:2057(AX1) and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2). Additionally, the failure to use
and/or diligently maintain in proper working order, air poliution control
facilities, whenever any emissions are being made which can be controlled by
the facilities is a violation of LAC 33:111.905.A, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)(1) and La.
RS. 30:2057(A)(2).

. In the 2023 Title V Second Seriannual Monitoring Report, dated March 21,

2024, the Respondent disclosed the following events when the opacity was in
excess of twenty (20) percent for more than one six-minute period in any sixty
(60) consecutive minutes for the Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP), CON0004,
shown in Table C: _

2 R B " ) Feeder #4 modifications ere planmed |
1:36 AM - 2:36 AM I Fuel foeder not feeding. | ™ for September boiler outage.
112023 __ Large piece of fuel caused feeder to
2. 6:42 AM - 700 AM 0.3 Fuel feeder not feeding. stop feeding and back up, cleansd
i I o ___out Jarge fuel piece.
7/10/2023 . Feeder #4 modifications are planned
| 606PM-6:18PM | 02 Fuel feeder not feeding. for Septemnber boiler omfge.
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West Fraser, Inc.
AE-PP-24-00312
Page 5

Feser ¥ modictons e et

' 7:‘11}2023: - - SRR IR
7!20.‘2023 o _ . . | Proximity switch was repositioned
3, 524 PM - $:42 PM 0.3 Cleat chain malfimction/repair. for better response.
#7717 X I - " Fuel pile bridged in fuel house, had
6 | 124AM-1:36 AM 02 Low fuel condition. CAT operator mix and unbridge “uel,
73012023 B ) Feeder #4 modifications are planned
" | 236 AM 248 AM 0. Fuel feeder not feeding. for September boller outage. _
Bl 6:06 AM—6:24 AM 02 Cleat chain malfunction/repair. | replace drive chain and sprockex in
- FATT # iﬁm b:;;m
‘ . Feeder worked on dixring
9. $:36 PM - $:48 PM 02 Fuel feeder not feeding, September Outage.
10 82112023 03 Electrical problems or power | Loss of electrical power to the kilns
‘1 5:54PM-6:12 PM i outage, - from the Utility feed.
' 912013 - #4 Feeder worked on during
L1 648 AM_7:06 AM 03 Fuel feeder not foeding. September Outage.
9/1/2023 . - R gt #4 Feeder worked on during
12| 848AM-10:06AM 12 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage.
‘ 97172023 - ' - o #4 Feeder worked on during
Bl sapM-soerm | 08 Fue] foeder not feading. September Outage.
YR ORI - 05 E.S.P, mechanical High O2 trip of ESP. Adjusted air
ek T30 AM =800 AM ) malfunction/repair balance to bring back in.
- 9023 . #4 Feeder worked on during
15. | 12:06 PM — 12:18 PM 0.2 Fuel feeder not feeding. Septsmber Outage,
922023 . #4 Feeder worked on during
16. 3 .54 PM - 3:48 PM 0.4 Fuel feeder not feedln& ) September Outage.
17 /312023 03 B.8.P. safety shutdown to Adjusted foel feed to help bring 02
: 11:12 AM - 11:30 " prevent damage. _ down.
' Kiln issues (kilns down for Kiln 6 down due to low greer.
18 9/3/2023 04 maintenance and/or repair, inventory, Kitn 4 finished dropping
o 4:06 PM - 4:30 PM ) random shutdown of kiln, Joad | the load on the boiler. Unloaded and
, change, etc.) reloaded Batch K4.
; Fuel issue: improperly mixed, . :
19, | gy mAROR 03 high mosture conteat, ack of | "I 07, el et ssues ducing
‘ i adequato fue] substitute. :
20 9/5/2023 0.1 ‘E.S.P. safety shutdown to Low voltage trip ESP field 1.
i T:24PM - 8:06 PM : prevent dsmage. Restarted field 1.
Fan reversal on kilns caused higk 02
- 982023 E.S.P. safety shutdown to -
21. 2:36 PM - 2:54 PM 0.3 prevent damage. trip on ESP. Angsu:,ted O2 restared
9/972023 o #4 Feeder worked on during
2| 936AM-10:18AM 02 Fuel feeder not feeding. September Outage.
A Fuel issue: improperly mixed, se .
B o6 an o A 04 high mlsture comtent, lack of [ 100 box bridgcel Adjusted floor
i e adequate firel substitute. )
U | 5oy gﬁs?gzsi PM 03 Unknown Boiler startup from outage,
10/9/2023 s Long box bridged adjusted floor
25. 9:00 AM - 9:42 AM 0.3 Low fuel condition, cha?ng_tim ors.
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West Fraser, In¢,
AE-PP-24-00312
Page 6

26.

| Low ﬁiel condition.

" Long box bridged sdjusted floor

2:36 AM - 3:30 AM o8 chain timers,
- i Classifier stopped up, cleaned out
: 1072572023 Ash syster mechanical s TR )
27, 00 AN - B 0.5 o . the following momiing, Thursday
2:00 AM - 2:30 AM malfunction/repair. 1012672023,
. 1172023 _ . Operator raked the piled fuel to bum
| 11/13/2023 Cleat chain mechanical | L0 water condition in the bol.,
B0 AM -, low/repair. condensats to return to enter the DA.
i 117132023 " P
30. 6:06 PM 618 M 02 Low fuel condition. Operatar pusbed up the fuei.
Kiln issues (kitns down for
: xm 8/2023 maintenance and/or repair, .
311 1202 AM- 1242 AM 05 random shutdown of kiln, load Kiln maintenaoce.
changs, etc.)
1/18 /2023 Low water condition in the boiler.
32. $:30 PM —9:00 PM 0.5 Feed water pump issues. Adjusted DA pressure to allow
' condensatn to retur fo eater the DA,
Kiin issues (kilns down for o o _
33 112802023 02 maintenarice and/of repair, Had to pause Kiln 6 to change fan
I T06 AM-T:18 AM o random shutdown of kiln, Joad “belts.
change, etc.) . _ .
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
long box bridging trying to keep
12972023 - - enough fuel feed for 3 kilns. Will
3. 10:24 AM - 11:00 AM 0.6 Low fuel condition. attempt to remove center numoer
from between the chaing during the
next boiler outage,
Running 3 kilns, having ssues with
_ long box bridging trying to keep
12/12/2023 _ L enough fuel feed for 3 kilns, Will
35. 2:12 AM ~ 3:06 AM 0.5 Low fliel condition, attempt to remove center runner
from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
Running 3 kilne, baving issues with
_ long box bridging trying to keep
1211272023 - enough fuel feed for 3 kilns. Will
36. 6:24 AM - 6:36 AM 02 Low fucl condition. attempt 10 remove center runmer
from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
Rurning 3 kilos, having issues ‘with
_ long box bridging trying to keep
12/15/2023 Fuel issue: improperly mixed, | ooy fuef feed for 3 kilns. Wil
37. . "l 0.2 high moisture content, lack of .
1:36 AM -~ 1:48 AM adequate fue! substitute. attempt to reraove center runner
q from between the chains during the

next boiler outage.
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AE-PP-24-00312
Page 7

RunningSkﬂas,havinglssmwiﬁa

Lo long box bridging trying to kozp
" 121572023 04 b ety ey Toixe%: | caough fuelfeed or ks wil
1 530 AM - 6:30 AM ) o fuel substitute attempt to remove center runner
adequat " | trom between the chains during the
next boiler outnge.
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
_ long box bridging trying to kezp
1224/2023 , . enough fuel feed for 3 kilns. Wil
0 142 AM - 1:54 AM 02 Low fuel condition. ate:if;n to remove center runner
: from between the chains during the
next boiler outage,
Running 3 kilns, having issues with
long box bridging trying to ke2p
1272412023 ; _ - encugh fuel feed for 3 kilns. Will
40. 4 442 PM -« 5:42 PM 07 Low fuel condition. atterspt to remove center runner
' ' from between the chains during the
next boiler outage.
—— "Kiln issues (kilns down for - -
12/30/202. 5, maintenante and/or repair, o
Al jo00 AM ~ 10:18 AM 03 random shutdown of kiln, load Kiln mainbenarce,
__change, ¢tc,)

Each faliure to control the emission of smoke generated by the burning of fuel
or combustion of waste material in a combustion unit so that the shade ot
appearance of the emission is not darker than twenty (20) percent average
opacity for not more than one (1) six-minute pcnocjs’ in any sixty (60)
consecutive minutes is a violation of Specific Requirement 5 of Title V Permit
No. 3240-00006-V12, LAC 33:L1101.B, LAC 33:I1.501.C4, La. RS.

'30:2057(AX(1) and La. RSS. 30:205%(AX2). Additionally, the failure to use

andlor diligently maintain in proper working order, air pollution control
facilities, whenever any emissions are being made which can be controlled by
the fucilities is a violation of LAC 33:11L.905.A, La. R.S. 30:2057(A)1) and La.
R.8. 30:2057(AX2).

. In the 2023 Boiler MACT Semiannual Compliance Report, dated January 31,
2024 and the 2023 Title V Second Semiannual Monitoring Report, dated March

21, 2024, the Respondent reported the failure to operate and maintain the
continuous monitoring system (CMS) for McBurney Boiler No. 4/EQT0005 in
accordance with the site-specific monitoring plan (SSMP), shown in Table D.
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Facilitymamgcment ment is deveing

];me;f;:d%yincﬁ’ procedure for boiler operators, and will pro\ ide
12223/2023 14.85 hours per " Opaclty / training on the startup procedumes for new hires
l . ”

TO0PM - Y000 AM | - patameter / and semiannually, Management Is also considering
7:00PM --10:00 AM Total = 44,85 hours mr;ﬁgn:tgz:gfgmemt ; | moving CEMDAS monitoring system closer to
P fm’?m or amﬁg‘“ ¢ other operating monitors. lnstallegl new. CEMS
o System and software 8/17/2023,
Facility management is developing a starfup

Parameters: Oxygen,
Steam Load #4y§::1 procedurs for boiler operators, and will provide

] sty 21:7 hours training on the startup procedures for new hiies
2 “03%21%033 AM pammeterpfr Mo nh?;a;?i;ment and aemfannuaily Mmfagement 18 also considering
- TR Total = 65.1 hours malfunctions/Computer moving CEMDAS momtoring system closer:to
failure or offline. other operating monitors. Installed now CEMS
" system and software 8/17/2023.
Each failure to operate and maintain the CMS in accordance with the SSMP is
a violation of Specific Requirement 20 of Title V Permit No. 3240-00006-V12,
40 CFR 63 .7505(d}4), which language has been adﬂpted 4s a Louisiana
regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:11L501.C 4, La. R.S, 30:2057(A)(1),
and La. R.S. 30:2057(AX2).

D. In the 2023 Boiler MACT Semiannual Compliance Report, dated January 31,
2024 and the 2023 Title V Second Semiannual Monitoring Report, dated March
21, 2024, the Respondent reported the failure to maintain the 30-day rolling
average oxygen contént of McBurney Boiler No. 4/EQT0005, at or above the
lowest houtly average oxygen level recorded (uring the most recent boiler
perfi test-according to the requirements in 40 CFR 63 Subpart DDDDD

able 8, shown in Table E.

1 12:00AM-1500pm | 168
10/14/2023 :
2 | 1200AM-1100pM | 225
3 HW/is/023 24.0 ' On 11/15/2023 while investigating a report
1 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM ' from PPM that our 30-day O2 limit was
10/16/2023 s . N exceeded, it was discovered that the 30-cay
b lzooam-tioopm | 40 s 33 OB (32 alamm set point change didn't take when
5 107182023 126 malfunction/Repair initially entered in PRISM. The set point
1 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM " was then changed to 8.3 and we took
10/19/2023 actions to raise the Stack outlet 02 to get
6 | 12:00 AM - | 1:00 PM 13.6 the 30-day back in compliarice.
7 10/20/2023 21.1
© ] 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM ’
8 102212023 17.5
| 1200 AM - 1100 PM :
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12:00 AM - 11:00 PM
10 102372023 64
10 ) 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM :
Ul pooam-100em| 104
10358033
2 | oo amotigopm| 23
107262023
B 1 o0am-noopm | B3
: 10/272023
M. | 200am-nioopm | B2
— AM_LLOORM L
15 1200 AM-1n:00em | 27
1072972023
1. | izo0aM-100pm| BT
| 1080%6023 b
1 12:00 AM - 11:00 PM '
18 1681208 3.1
* | 12100 AM -~ 11:00 PM :
T111P05
191 1200 AM-1100pm | 120
11722023 |
. | 1200aM-1100pm | 153
117372023
2 azeoaM-1roopm| 18!
117472023
2 | ooam-aroepm | 164
117555023 |
2 | pooam-1epm | 132
% | o0 e e | 133 On 11/15/2023 while investigating a report
=11 N!EOZS from PPM that our 30-day O2 timit was
o | 11782023 . Fan and/or Draft control ~ 8 arth 861 point QI ke W
26, 12:00 . 214 malfunction/Repai initially entered in PRISM. The set point
: m’.}é&?’w M : ¢ pair was then changed to 8.3 and we ook
27. Ry 21,5 actions to raise the Stack outlet O2 to get
12:00 AM - 11:00 PM ' the 30-day back in compliance.
- 1171072023
28 | 12:00AM-1100pM | 202
11/11/2023 |
2 1200 AM-toopm | 209
117122423
301 ooam-1100em | 173
11/13/2023
M0 AM-100pm | 109
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o 11/1472023 ;
2 | zooam-1io0em | 3

111572023 o
3B | j200AM-1100pM | 06

Each failure to maintain the 30-day rolling average oxygen content at or above
the lowest hourly average oxygen level recorded during the most recent boiler
performance test is a violation of Specific Requirement 15 of Title V Air Permit
No. 3240-00006-V12, 40 CFR 63.7500(a)(2), which language has been adopted
as a Louisiana regulation in LAC 33:111.5122.A, LAC 33:11L.501.C.4, La. R.S.
30:2057(A)(1), and La. R.S. 30:2057(A)2).

Pursuant to La. R.S. 30:2050.3(B), you are hereby notified that the issuance of a penalty
assessment is being considered for the violation(s) described herein. Written comments may be filed
regarding the violation(s) and the contemplated penalty. If you elect to submit comments, it is requested
that they be submitted within ten (10) days of receipt of this notice.

Prior to the issuance of any additional appropriate enforcement action, you may request a meeting
with the Department to present any mitigating circumstances concerning the violation(s). If you would
like to have such a meeting, please contact Courtney Tolbert at 225-219-3347 or Couriney. Tolbert@la.gov
within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY.

The Department is required by La. R.S. 30:2025(E)(3)(a) to consider the gross revenues of the
Respondent and the monetary benefits of noncompliance in order to determine whether a penalty will be
assessed and the amount of such penalty. Please forward the Respondent’s most current annual gross
revenue statement along with a statement of the monetary benefits of noncompliance for the cited
violations to the above named contact person within ten (10) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF
POTENTIAL PENALTY, Include with your statement of monetary benefits the method(s) you utilized
to arrive at the sum, If you assert that no monetary benefits have been gained, you are to fully justify this
statement, If the Respondent chooses not to submit the requested most current annual gross revenues
statement within ten (10) days, it will be viewed by the Department as an admission that the Respondent
has the ability to pay the statutory maximum penalty as outlined in La. R.S. 30:2025. '

. For each violation described herein, the Department reserves the tight to seek civil penalties and
the right to seck compliance with its rules and regulations in any manner atlowed by law, and nothing
herein shall be construed to preclude the right to seek such penalties and compliance,

The Department assesses civil penalties based on LAC 33:1.Subpart].Chapter 7. To expedite
closure of this NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY, the Respondent may offer a settlement amount
to resolve any claim for civil penalties for the violation(s) described herein. The Respondent may offer a
seftlement amount, but the Department is under no obligation to enter into settlement negotiations. The
decision to proceed with a settlement is at the discretion of the Department. The settlement offer amount
may be entered on the attached “NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY REQUEST TO SETTLE"
form. The Respondent may submit the settlement offer within one hundred and eighty (180) days of receipt
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s NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY. The Respondent must include a justification of the offer.
submr;_pggmcnt nf the offer amount with the form. The Department will review the settlement
spondent as to whether the offer is or is not accepted,

To redice document handling, please refer to the Enforcement Tracking Number and Agency
Interest Number on the front of this document on all correspondence in response to this action,

Sincerely,

S

Jerry Lang
Assistant Secretary -
Office of Environmental Comp!lance

IUCIT/jt
Alt ID No. LA0000002212700006

¢ West. Ftaset, In¢.
c/o Wayne Dupx
PO Drawer 1
Joyce, LA 71440

ron; General Manager
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| LOUISIANA PEPARTMENT OF ENV!!ONMEN‘I’M QUAU'I’\‘

OFFICE OF ENVIRONMENTAL COMPUANCE
ENFORCEMENT DIVISION NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY
POST OFFICE B0X 8312 REQUEST TO SETTLE {OPTIONAL)

_Enfor dog No. | AE-PP-24-00312 Contact Name Courtnay Tolbert
_mg_lg;gm(m No.  |asse Contact Phone No. | 225-219-3347
Atternate 1D No. LADODODO2212
Respondent: West Fraser, inc. Facllity Name: Joyee Sawmill
' ¢/6 CT Corporation System Physical Location: 6481 Loulsiana Highway 34
| Agent for Service of Process
3887 Plaza Tower Dr. City, State, Zip: Joyce, LA 71440

Baton Rouge, LA 70816 | Parish; | winn

_ {check the applicable option) _ _ _
The Respondent Is not Interested in entering Into settlement negotiations with the Department with the understanding :hat the
= | Department has the right to assess civil penalties based on LAC 334 Suhpartl Chapter?

in order to feso!ve any daim for civil penaities for the violatlcns In HO?ICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY {AE-PP-24-00312), the
—— | Respondent is interested in entering into settlement negotiations with the Department and would like to set up a meating to
discuss settlement procedures.

| The Respondent may submit the settlament offer within one hundred and eighty (180) days of receipt of this NOTICE OF
=~ { POTENTIAL PﬁHAETY (AE PP-24-00312}

1 In order to resoive arw clalim for civil penaities for the violations In NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY {AE-PP-24-00312), the
Respondent is interésted: in entering Into settlement negotiations with the Department and offers to pay

S , which shall include LDEQ enforcement costs and any monetary benefit of non-compliance.
. Manetary component = 5.
. Beneﬂcial Snvironmental Project (BEP)component {optionalj= $

M- the Deportment will review the settlement offer and notify

- the Respondent asto whether the ojfer Kor .‘s not decepted.

The Kespondent has reviewed the violations noted in NOTICE OF POTENTIAL PENALTY {AE-PP-24-00312) and has attached a
Justification of its offerand a dem*iption of any BEPs If included in 5et_tlement offer.

i certyy, undcr pmvklons In taukl'am md Unftcd Staus va that provﬁa m’mkm penalties for false stotements, thot hased on
information and belief formed after reasonable Inquiry, the statements ond informution tttached and the compliance statement above,
ore true, accurate, and complete. | also certify thot | do not owe outstanding fees or penalties to the Department for this facility or any
other facility 1 own or operate. Ifurthcr ccna' that om efthtr the Respondent or an authorized representative of the Respondent.

Respondent’s Signature ~ Respondent's Printed Nama Respondent’s Title

Respondent's Physical Address Respondent's Phone ¥ Date
MAIL COMPLETED DOCUMENT TO THE ADDRESS BELOW:;

Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality
Office of Environmental Compliance
Enforcement Division

P.0. Box 4312

Baton Rouge, LA 70821

Atin: Courtney Tolbert




| WHATIS A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?

Onca the Dapariment has detefmined tht a penalty is warranted for a violation, the Assistant Secretary of the Department,
with the concurrence of the Atiomey General, may enter info a setlement agreement with the Respondent as a means fo
resolver the Department's claim for a penaity. 1

HOW DOES THE SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT PROCESS WORK?
To begin the settiemient agreemant process, the Department must receive a witien settlement offer. Once this offe” is
submifted, it-Is: sent for approval by the Assistant Secretary of the Office of Environmenta) Compiiance. The formal
Settlement Agreament is dnafted and sent to the Atiomey General's office where the Attomey General has a 90 day
concurence pedod. During this tme, the Respondent is required to run a public nofice In an official joumal -andior
newspaper of general circulation in each aflected parish. Afler which, a 45 day public comment period Is openied fo alow
the public to submit comments. Once the Department has received concumence, the seftiement agreement is signed by
both paries. The Department then forwards a letter to the responsible party to establish a payment plan andfor beneficial
environmental project (BEP).

WHAT SHOULD | INCLUDE IN A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT?

The Department uses the panalfy determination method defined in LAC 33:1.705 as a guideline to accepting setiemsnt
offars, The penalty matrx is used fo defermine a penalty range for each violation based on the two violation specific factors,
the nature and grawity of the violation and the degree of riskimpact to human health and property.

Degree of Risk to Human Health or Property
Major. {ackual maacurable hiamn or substantial risk of ham) A violation of major impact to an environmental resource of a hazand characterized
by high wolume andlor frequent occutrerice andior high poliutant concentration.
Moderste: (polential for measurable detrimental impact) A vidlation of moderate impact tind hazard may be one characterized by otcasional
ovoyrrence andior pollitant concientration thal may be expecied lo have adeliimental effect under certain conditions
Minor: {no harmn or sk of harm) A viokation of rinor impact are isolated single incidences and thal cause no measureble detrimental effect or
ane administrative in nature.

Nature and Grawvity of the Violation _
Major. Vicigtions of statites, regulations, orders, permit limits, of pesmit requirements that resultin negafing the infent of the requirement to such
an extent thal Bite of no implamentation of requirements occurred . _ _
Modesato: Violations that result in substantialy negating the intent of the requirements, but some inipleméntation of the requirements occurred,
Minor: Victations that result in some deviaion from the inlent of the requirement; however, substantal inplementation is demonsirated.

The range s adjusted using the following viotator specific faclors:
1. history of pravious viclations or repeated noncompliance;
3; degree of culpabilty, recalcitrance, defiarics, o indifference to reguiations of orders;
4, whether the Responident has falied to mitigals of I mais a reasoriable attempt to mifigate the damages caused by the violation; and
5. whether the vidiation and the surmounding cifoumstances were immediately reporied 1o the department, and whether the
Violalioh was coicealed o these was an atietnpt lo concaal by the Respondent.
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‘Given the pravious information, the following formula is used to obtain a penalty amount
Perialty Event Total = Penalty Event Minimum +« (Adjustinent Percentage x [Penalty Event Maximum - Penlty Event Misiimum )

After this, the Department adds any manetary benefit of noncompliance fo the penalty event. In the event that a monetary
benefit is gained due to the delay of a cost that is ultimately paid, the Depariment adds the applicable judicial interest
Finally, the. Department adds all response costs ingluding, but not fimited to, the cost of conducting inspections, and the
staff time devoted to the preparation of reports and issuing enforcement actions. -

WHAT IS A BEP?
A BEP i a project thet provides for environmental mitigation which the respondent is not otherwise legally required to per-
form, but which the defendant/respondent agrees to undertake as a component of the settiement agreement,
Project categories for BEPs include public: health, pollution prevention, poliution reduction, environmental restoration and
protection, assessments and audits, environmental ‘compliance prometion, and emergency planning, preparedness and
response, Other projects:may be considered if the Department determines that these projects have enviranmental me:it

- and is otherwise fully consistent with the intent of the BEP regulations.

WHAT HAPPENS IF MY OFFER IS REJECTED?
If an offer s rejected by the Assistant Secrétary, the Legal Division will contact the responsible party, or anyone
designated as an appropriate contact in the settisment offer, to discuss any discrepancies.

WHERE CAN | FIND EXAMPLES AND MORE INFORMATION?

searchable in EDMS using the following filters
Meda: Air Qualty, Funclion: Enforcement, Description: Seftfement

Setttement Agreements - ... Enforcement Division's website
: specific examples can be provided upon request
Penalty Determination Method : LAC 334 Chapter 7
Beneficial Environmental PRJECIS .........ooo.ovoieeee e, LAC 33: Chapter 25
- FAQs
Judicial Interes....cc....iicrivinns e e thtese e e be st oAb bete s sherenaneaee e b s b e provided by the Louisiana State Bar Association

dorcament Division






